

ARCHAEOLOGICAL AUTHORITY 1

AUTHORITY DETAILS

Authority Number:

Determination Date: **Expiry Date:** 20 years from grant

Authority Holder: NZ Transport Agency Waka Kotahi

Postal Address: BNZ Centre, Level 1/120 Hereford Street, Christchurch 8011

Archaeological Sites: M35/1013 (Midden/Oven), M35/1014 (Midden/Oven), M35/1015 (Midden/Oven), ~~M35/1010 (Notable Tree)~~, M35/1189 (Historic Homestead site), M35/311(Māori horticultural), ~~M35/1011(Creamery)~~, M35/160 (Borrow pit), M35/1009 (Burnet Homestead), M35/1002 (Midden/Oven), M35/1003 (Midden/Oven), M35/1005 (Ditch and bank fence), M35/1006 (Midden/Oven), M35/15 (Midden/Oven), M35/123 (Midden/Oven) and M35/1123 (Midden/Oven), M35/1004 (Midden/Oven), ~~M35/2447 (Midden/Oven)~~, ~~M35/2452 (Agricultural/Pastoral)~~, ~~M35/2456 (Agricultural/Pastoral)~~ and potential subsurface archaeological sites

Location: See Schedule A

S 45 Approved Person: To be approved pursuant to section 45 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014

Landowner Consent: To be provided

Commented [JH1]: HNZPT have withdrawn this as it doesn't fit the HNZPT Act criteria for a site, it is covered in the M35/1189 site landscape.

Commented [JH2]: HNZPT have withdrawn this site as it doesn't fit the HNZPT Act criteria for a site.

DETERMINATION

The FTAAs Expert Consenting Panel grants an archaeological authority pursuant to section 81 of the Fast Track Approvals Act 2024 and section 48 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014 in respect of the archaeological sites described above, within the areas specified in the location above, to NZ Transport Agency for earthworks associated with construction of State Highway 1 North Canterbury – Woodend Bypass Project (known as Belfast to Pegasus) (archaeological works), subject to the following conditions:

CONDITIONS OF AUTHORITY

No.	Condition
Before Works	

1	Start Work Notification The Authority Holder shall advise Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga (HNZPT) and Whitiara of the date when archaeological works will commence at least two working days before commencement.
2	Archaeological Management Plan The Authority Holder shall prepare an Archaeological and Cultural Sites Management Plan (ACSMP) in consultation with Whitiara. (a) The purpose of the ACSMP is to require the Authority Holder to undertake construction in a manner that ensures the use of appropriate training, methods, protocols, and procedures in relation to the possible presence of archaeological sites or material that may be discovered during construction and the appropriate investigation and recording of any archaeological resources discovered during the construction of the Project. (b) The ACSMP shall include: - Provision for Whitiara cultural monitoring to take place during archaeological investigations; - Procedures for reporting items, artifacts, and / or other archaeological finds to Whitiara and HNZPT; and - Procedures in the case of any koiwi finds, including advice to the NZ Police. - Procedures for any archaeological investigation or recording of archaeological information; - The role, responsibility and level of authority of the s45 approved person and any other person appointed to undertake archaeological work on their behalf. Names and contact details of all other persons whom the s45 approved person appoints must be stated in the management plan; - Timeframes for archaeological work; - Protocols for the unexpected discovery of archaeological material; - The responsibilities of contractors with regard to notification of archaeological sites; - Requirements for stand down periods to enable archaeological work; - Mechanisms for dispute resolution; - Emergency contact details for the s45 approved person, Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga, and Iwi. <u>The ACSMP must be submitted to HNZPT for approval at least 30 Working Days before starting Construction Works (or the stage of work to which the ACSMP applies), the ACSMP shall be submitted to HNZPT for certification that the ACSMP satisfies the requirements of 2(a) and (b). In the event HNZPT has not within 30 Working Days certified the ACSMP or advised that the ACSMP is not suitable to certify, the ACSMP will be deemed to have been certified, and the Consent Holder may commence Construction Works in accordance with</u>

Commented [KM3]: Clause removed in response to comment from Whitiara. See response to comment 6.4

	the ACSMP prior to the commencement of any earthworks. No earthworks shall commence until HNZPT has given its written approval of the ACSMP. The approved ACSMP shall be implemented and complied with for the duration of the Authority. The Authority Holder may update the ACSMP by submitting the amended ACSMP in writing to HNZPT for its written approval. Any updates to the ACSMP shall be prepared in consultation with Whitiara. At least 30 Working Days before starting Construction Works (or the stage of work to which the ACSMP applies), the ACSMP shall be submitted to HNZPT for certification that the ACSMP satisfies the requirements of AA.5(c) and (d). In the event NZHPT has not within 30 Working Days certified the ACSMP or advised that the ACSMP is not suitable to certify, the ACSMP will be deemed to have been certified, and the Consent Holder may commence Construction Works in accordance with the ACSMP.
3	Archaeological Research and Mitigation Strategy The Authority Holder shall prepare an Archaeological Research and Mitigation Strategy (Strategy). The Strategy shall include: (a) the research objectives that archaeological investigations should address and the methodologies to be followed to achieve those objectives. The research objectives shall be informed by regional and national research themes. (b) Provision for review and feedback by Whitiara prior to submission to HNZPT, including for any potential amendments after approval At least 20 Working Days before starting Project Works, the Strategy shall be submitted to HNZPT for written approval. The approved Strategy shall be implemented and complied with for the duration of the Authority. The Authority Holder may update the Strategy by submitting the amended Strategy in writing to HNZPT for written approval.
4	Landowner Consent The Authority Holder must provide HNZPT with the written consent of all landowners of the land subject to this Authority prior to any archaeological works commencing.
5	Approved Person This Authority may not be exercised until a person to undertake the work required has been approved in writing by HNZPT under section 45 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014.
6	Site Briefing

Commented [KM4]: NZTA acknowledges HPTNZ's position regarding deemed certification. For consistency, NZTA seeks certification timeframes and deemed certification across all approvals. NZTA and HPTNZ are continuing to work towards agreement on the ACSMP itself. If this can be approved by HPTNZ and Whitiara, condition 2 can be amended to remove the deemed certification process.

Commented [KM5]: Clause included in response to comment from Whitiara. See response to comment 6.5.

	The Authority Holder must ensure that all contractors working on the project are briefed on site by the section 45 approved person (who may appoint a person to carry out the briefing on their behalf) prior to any archaeological works commencing. The briefing must include the possibility of encountering archaeological evidence, how to identify possible archaeological sites, the archaeological work required by the conditions of this authority, and contractors' responsibilities with regard to discovering archaeological evidence.
During Works	
7	Tikanga Archaeological work must be undertaken in conformity with any tikanga Māori protocols agreed between the Authority Holder and Whitiara.
8	Kōiwi Discovery If any kōiwi (human remains) are encountered, all works must cease within 20 metres of the discovery. HNZPT, New Zealand Police, and Whitiara must be advised immediately. Any steps following must be undertaken in accordance with Guidelines for Kōiwi Tangata/Human Remains (AGS8 2014) and no further work in the area may take place until future actions have been agreed by all parties.
9	Monitoring Any earthworks that may affect an archaeological site must be monitored by the section 45 approved person, who may appoint a person to carry out the monitoring on their behalf in accordance with accepted archaeological practice and the ACSMP.
10	Investigation Any archaeological evidence encountered during the exercise of this Archaeological Authority must be investigated, recorded and analysed in accordance with with accepted archaeological practice and the ACSMP.
11	Annual Reporting Annually from the date of issue of this Authority, the Authority Holder must submit to Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga a written report containing a summary of the progress of the activity and any archaeological findings.
After Works	
12	Work Completion Notification The Authority Holder shall advise HNZPT and Whitiara of the completion of archaeological works within five working days of completion.
13	Completion of Archaeological Siteworks

	Within 20 working days of the completion of on-site archaeological work associated with this authority, the Authority Holder shall ensure that: (a) An interim report, to the satisfaction of HNZPT, following the Archaeological Report Guideline (AGS12 2023) is submitted to HNZPT for inclusion in the HNZPT Archaeological Reports Digital Library. (b) Site records are updated or submitted to the NZAA Site Recording Scheme.
14	Archaeological Records Within 18 months of the completion of the on-site archaeological work, the Authority Holder shall ensure that a final report, completed following the Archaeological Report Guideline (AGS12 2023), is emailed to HNZPT for inclusion in HNZPT's Archaeological Reports Digital Library, and to Whitiara. A copy must also be provided to the NZAA Central Filekeeper.

SCHEDULE A

Appellation	Recorded Archaeological Sites
Road Reserve	M35/1013 (Midden/Oven), M35/1014 (Midden/Oven) and M35/1015 (Midden/Oven), M35/15 (Midden/Oven), M35/123 (Midden/Oven) and M35/1123 (Midden/Oven)
Part RS 3093,3129,3141-3144,3169,3170	
Lot 2 DP481513	
Lot 1 DP 16151	
Drain Reserve Red Map 58	
Lot 2 DP16151	
Lot 3 DP16151	
Lot 4 DP16151	
Lot 3003 DP 521536	
Lot 5 DP16151	
Lot 2000 DP 521536	
Lot 3 DP481513	
Lot 3000 DP 521536	M35/1189 (historic homestead site)
Lot 3002 DP 521536	
Lot 3001 DP 521536	M35/1010 (Notable tree) and M35/1189 (Rev Ravens homestead)
Lot 1 DP 327014	M35/1189 (historic homestead site)
Lot 2001 DP 394635	
Lot 5001 DP 526350	M35/1189 (historic homestead site)
Lot 5000 DP 526350	M35/1189 (historic homestead site)
Lot 3013 DP 598404	
Lot 2 DP 80926	M35/311(Māori horticulture), M35 1011(Creamery)
Lot 2019 DP 598404	
Lot 1211 DP 598404	M35/1189 (historic homestead site)
Lot 2011 DP 598404	M35/1189 (historic homestead site)
Riverbed (Parcel ID 3593053)	
Part RS 757	M35/160 (Borrow Pit)
Lot 1 DP15192	M35/160 (Borrow Pit)
Lot 1 DP414079	
Lot 2 DP414079	M35/1009 (Burnet homestead) M35/1002 (Midden/Oven) M35/1003 (Midden/Oven) M35/1005

	(Ditch and bank fence structure) M35/1004 (Midden/Oven)
Lot 2 DP 393876	
Lot 2 DP 342658	
Part RS 3722	
Lot 1 DP 345904	
Lot 2 DP 345904	
Lot 3 DP 345904	
Lot 2 DP 29099	M35/1006 (Midden/ Oven)
Lot 1 DP 29099	
Section 1 SO 534642	
Section 3 SO 565976	
Section 2 SO 565976	
Lot 7 DP 50914	M35/2447 (Midden/Oven)
Lot 3 DP 575733	
Lot 1130 DP 590590	
Lot 8 DP 50914	
Lot 3 DP 423296	M35/1916 (Midden/Oven), M35/2173 (Midden/Oven) and M35/1012 (McIntosh Drain), M35/2456 (Agricultural/Pastoral)
RS 1203	
Lot 1 DP 423296	M35/1916 (Midden/Oven) and M35/2173 (Midden/Oven) M35/2452 (Agricultural/Pastoral)
Lot 2 DP 423296	M35/2456 (Agricultural/Pastoral)
Marked R SO 13782	M35/15 (Midden/Oven)
Marked V SO 13783	
Lot 2 DP 359788	M35/2456 (Agricultural/Pastoral)
Lot 4 DP 306454	
Stopped Road	
Lot 3 DP 306454	
Lot 1 DP 359788	
Marked X SO 13783	M35/15 (Midden/Oven)
Lot 2 DP 306454	
Area BBSO 13784	

Area EE SO 13784	
Area LL SO 13784	
Road Reserve	
Marked Y SO 13783	
Part Lot 1 DP 20603	
Part RS 318	
Part Te Wera Māori Reserve 873 Block	
Marked OO SO 13785	
Marked PP SO 13785	
Marked QQ SO 13785	
Part Lot 1 DP 576	
Part Lot 1 DP 5974	
Section 2 SO 435273	
Stopped Road Survey Office Plan 11722	
Part Lot 1 DP 5974	
Part Lot 55 DP 576	
Old Riverbed Survey Office Plan 11722	
Old Riverbed Survey Office Plan 11722	
Stopped Road Survey Office Plan 11722	
Section 5 SO 435273	
River Bed Survey Office Plan 16148	
Railway Land SO 11723	
Part RS 760	

AUTHORITY DETAILS

Determination Date: **Expiry Date:** 20 years from grant

Postal Address: BNZ Centre, Level 1/120 Hereford Street, Christchurch 8011

Archaeological Sites: Potential subsurface archaeological sites

Location: Part Rural Section 864: Lot 97 DP 417391

S45 Approved Person: To be approved pursuant to section 45 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014

Landowner Consent: To be provided

The FTA Expert Consenting Panel grants an archaeological authority pursuant to section 81 of the Fast Track Approvals Act 2024 and section 48 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014 in respect of the archaeological sites described above, within the areas specified in the location above, to NZ Transport Agency for earthworks associated with construction of State Highway 1 North Canterbury – Woodend Bypass Project (known as Belfast to Pegasus) (archaeological works), subject to the following conditions:

No.	Condition
Before Works	
1	Start Work Notification The Authority Holder shall advise Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga (HNZPT) and Whitiōra of the date when archaeological works will commence at least two working days before commencement.
2	Archaeological Management Plan The Authority Holder shall prepare an Archaeological and Cultural Sites Management Plan (ACSMP) in consultation with Whitiōra.

(a) The purpose of the ACSMP is to require the Authority Holder to undertake construction in a manner that ensures the use of appropriate training, methods, protocols, and procedures in relation to the possible presence of archaeological sites or material that may be discovered during construction and the appropriate investigation and recording of any archaeological resources discovered during the construction of the Project.

(b) The ACSMP shall include:

- i. Provision for Whitiara cultural monitoring to take place ~~during archaeological investigations;~~
- ii. Procedures for reporting items, artifacts, and / or other archaeological finds to Whitiara and HNZPT; and
- iii. Procedures in the case of any koiwi finds, including advice to the NZ Police.
- iv. Procedures for any archaeological investigation or recording of archaeological information;
- v. The role, responsibility and level of authority of the s45 approved person and any other person appointed to undertake archaeological work on their behalf. Names and contact details of all other persons whom the s45 approved person appoints must be stated in the management plan;
- vi. Timeframes for archaeological work;
- vii. Protocols for the unexpected discovery of archaeological material;
- viii. The responsibilities of contractors with regard to notification of archaeological sites;
- ix. Requirements for stand down periods to enable archaeological work;
- x. Mechanisms for dispute resolution;
- xi. Emergency contact details for the s45 approved person, Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga, and Iwi.

The ACSMP must be submitted to HNZPT for approval at least 30 Working Days before starting Construction Works (or the stage of work to which the ACSMP applies), the ACSMP shall be submitted to HNZPT for certification that the ACSMP satisfies the requirements of 2(a) and (b). In the event NZHPT has not within 30 Working Days certified the ACSMP or advised that the ACSMP is not suitable to certify, the ACSMP will be deemed to have been certified, and the Consent Holder may commence Construction Works in accordance with the ACSMP. prior to the commencement of any earthworks. No earthworks shall commence until HNZPT has given its written approval of the ACSMP.

The approved ACSMP shall be implemented and complied with for the duration of the Authority.

The Authority Holder may update the ACSMP by submitting the amended ACSMP in writing to HNZPT for its written approval. Any updates to the ACSMP shall be prepared in consultation with Whitiara. At least 30 Working Days before starting Construction Works (or the stage of work to which the ACSMP applies), the ACSMP shall be submitted to HNZPT for certification that the ACSMP satisfies the requirements of AA.5(c) and (d). In the event

Commented [KM6]: Clause removed in response to comment from Whitiara. See response to comment 6.4

Commented [KM7]: NZTA acknowledges HPTNZ's position regarding deemed certification. For consistency, NZTA seeks certification timeframes and deemed certification across all approvals. NZTA and HPTNZ are continuing to work towards agreement on the ACSMP itself. If this can be approved by HPTNZ and Whitiara, condition 2 can be amended to remove the deemed certification process.

Commented [KM8]: Clause included in response to comment from Whitiara. See response to comment 6.5.

	NZHPT has not within 30 Working Days certified the ACSMP or advised that the ACSMP is not suitable to certify, the ACSMP will be deemed to have been certified, and the Consent Holder may commence Construction Works in accordance with the ACSMP.
3	Archaeological Research and Mitigation Strategy The Authority Holder shall prepare an Archaeological Research and Mitigation Strategy (Strategy). The Strategy shall include: (a) the research objectives that archaeological investigations should address and the methodologies to be followed to achieve those objectives. The research objectives shall be informed by regional and national research themes. (b) Provision for review and feedback by Whitiara prior to submission to HNZPT, including for any potential amendments after approval At least 20 Working Days before starting Project Works, the Strategy shall be submitted to HNZPT for written approval. The approved Strategy shall be implemented and complied with for the duration of the Authority. The Authority Holder may update the Strategy by submitting the amended Strategy in writing to HNZPT for written approval.
4	Landowner Consent The Authority Holder must provide HNZPT with the written consent of all landowners of the land subject to this Authority prior to any archaeological works commencing.
5	Approved Person This Authority may not be exercised until a person to undertake the work required has been approved in writing by HNZPT under section 45 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014.
6	Site Briefing The Authority Holder must ensure that all contractors working on the project are briefed on site by the section 45 approved person (who may appoint a person to carry out the briefing on their behalf) prior to any archaeological works commencing. The briefing must include the possibility of encountering archaeological evidence, how to identify possible archaeological sites, the archaeological work required by the conditions of this authority, and contractors' responsibilities with regard to discovering archaeological evidence.
During Works	
7	Tikanga

	Archaeological work must be undertaken in conformity with any tikanga Māori protocols agreed between the Authority Holder and Whitiara.
8	Kōiwi Discovery If any kōiwi (human remains) are encountered, all works must cease within 20 metres of the discovery. HNZPT, New Zealand Police, and Whitiara must be advised immediately. Any steps following must be undertaken in accordance with Guidelines for Kōiwi Tangata/Human Remains (AGS8 2014) and no further work in the area may take place until future actions have been agreed by all parties.
9	Monitoring Any earthworks that may affect an archaeological site must be monitored by the section 45 approved person, who may appoint a person to carry out the monitoring on their behalf in accordance with accepted archaeological practice and the ACSMP.
10	Investigation Any archaeological evidence encountered during the exercise of this Archaeological Authority must be investigated, recorded and analysed in accordance with accepted archaeological practice and the ACSMP.
11	Annual Reporting Annually from the date of issue of this authority, the Authority Holder must submit to Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga a written report containing a summary of the progress of the activity and any archaeological findings.
After Works	
12	Work Completion Notification The Authority Holder shall advise HNZPT and Whitiara of the completion of archaeological works within five working days of completion.
13	Completion of Archaeological Siteworks Within 20 working days of the completion of on-site archaeological work associated with this authority, the Authority Holder shall ensure that: (a) An interim report, to the satisfaction of HNZPT, following the Archaeological Report Guideline (AGS12 2023) is submitted to HNZPT for inclusion in the HNZPT Archaeological Reports Digital Library. (b) Site records are updated or submitted to the NZAA Site Recording Scheme.
14	Archaeological Records Within 18 months of the completion of the on-site archaeological work, the Authority Holder shall ensure that a final report, completed following the Archaeological Report

	Guideline (AGS12 2023), is emailed to HNZPT for inclusion in HNZPT's Archaeological Reports Digital Library, and to Whitiara. A copy must also be provided to the NZAA Central Filekeeper.
--	--

AUTHORITY DETAILS

Determination Date: **Expiry Date:** 20 years from grant

Postal Address: BNZ Centre, Level 1/120 Hereford Street, Christchurch 8011

Archaeological Sites: M35/1189 (historic homestead site), and potential subsurface archaeological sites

Location: Lot 9009 DP 598404

S45 Approved Person: To be approved pursuant to section 45 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014

Landowner Consent: To be provided

The FTA Expert Consenting Panel grants an archaeological authority pursuant to section 81 of the Fast Track Approvals Act 2024 and section 48 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014 in respect of the archaeological sites described above, within the areas specified in the location above, to NZ Transport Agency for earthworks associated with construction of State Highway 1 North Canterbury – Woodend Bypass Project (known as Belfast to Pegasus) (archaeological works), subject to the following conditions:

CONDITIONS OF AUTHORITY

No.	Condition
Before Works	
1	Start Work Notification The Authority Holder shall advise Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga (HNZPT) and Whitiara of the date when archaeological works will commence at least two working days before commencement.

Archaeological Management Plan

The Authority Holder shall prepare an Archaeological and Cultural Sites Management Plan (ACSMP) in consultation with Whitiara.

- (a) The purpose of the ACSMP is to require the Authority Holder to undertake construction in a manner that ensures the use of appropriate training, methods, protocols, and procedures in relation to the possible presence of archaeological sites or material that may be discovered during construction and the appropriate investigation and recording of any archaeological resources discovered during the construction of the Project.
- (b) The ACSMP shall include:
 - i. Provision for Whitiara cultural monitoring to take place ~~during archaeological investigations;~~
 - ii. Procedures for reporting items, artifacts, and / or other archaeological finds to Whitiara and HNZPT; and
 - iii. Procedures in the case of any koiwi finds, including advice to the NZ Police.
 - iv. Procedures for any archaeological investigation or recording of archaeological information;
 - v. The role, responsibility and level of authority of the s45 approved person and any other person appointed to undertake archaeological work on their behalf. Names and contact details of all other persons whom the s45 approved person appoints must be stated in the management plan;
 - vi. Timeframes for archaeological work;
 - vii. Protocols for the unexpected discovery of archaeological material;
 - viii. The responsibilities of contractors with regard to notification of archaeological sites;
 - ix. Requirements for stand down periods to enable archaeological work;
 - x. Mechanisms for dispute resolution;
 - xi. Emergency contact details for the s45 approved person, Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga, and Iwi.

The ACSMP must be submitted to HNZPT for approval ~~at least 30 Working Days before starting Construction Works (or the stage of work to which the ACSMP applies), the ACSMP shall be submitted to HNZPT for certification that the ACSMP satisfies the requirements of 2(a) and (b). In the event NZHPT has not within 30 Working Days certified the ACSMP or advised that the ACSMP is not suitable to certify, the ACSMP will be deemed to have been certified, and the Consent Holder may commence Construction Works in accordance with the ACSMP. prior to the commencement of any earthworks. No earthworks shall commence until HNZPT has given its written approval of the ACSMP.~~

The approved ACSMP shall be implemented and complied with for the duration of the Authority.

Commented [KM9]: Clause removed in response to comment from Whitiara. See response to comment 6.4

Commented [KM10]: NZTA acknowledges HPTNZ's position regarding deemed certification. For consistency, NZTA seeks certification timeframes and deemed certification across all approvals. NZTA and HPTNZ are continuing to work towards agreement on the ACSMP itself. If this can be approved by HPTNZ and Whitiara, condition 2 can be amended to remove the deemed certification process.

	The Authority Holder may update the ACSMP by submitting the amended ACSMP in writing to HNZPT for its written approval. Any updates to the ACSMP shall be prepared in consultation with Whitiara. At least 30 Working Days before starting Construction Works (or the stage of work to which the ACSMP applies), the ACSMP shall be submitted to HNZPT for certification that the ACSMP satisfies the requirements of AA.5(c) and (d). In the event NZHPT has not within 30 Working Days certified the ACSMP or advised that the ACSMP is not suitable to certify, the ACSMP will be deemed to have been certified, and the Consent Holder may commence Construction Works in accordance with the ACSMP.
3	Archaeological Research and Mitigation Strategy The Authority Holder shall prepare an Archaeological Research and Mitigation Strategy (Strategy). The Strategy shall include: (a) the research objectives that archaeological investigations should address and the methodologies to be followed to achieve those objectives. The research objectives shall be informed by regional and national research themes. (b) Provision for review and feedback by Whitiara prior to submission to HNZPT, including for any potential amendments after approval At least 20 Working Days before starting Project Works, the Strategy shall be submitted to HNZPT for written approval. The approved Strategy shall be implemented and complied with for the duration of the Authority. The Authority Holder may update the Strategy by submitting the amended Strategy in writing to HNZPT for written approval.
4	Landowner Consent The Authority Holder must provide HNZPT with the written consent of all landowners of the land subject to this Authority prior to any archaeological works commencing.
5	Approved Person This Authority may not be exercised until a person to undertake the work required has been approved in writing by HNZPT under section 45 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014.
6	Site Briefing The Authority Holder must ensure that all contractors working on the project are briefed on site by the section 45 approved person (who may appoint a person to carry out the briefing on their behalf) prior to any archaeological works commencing. The briefing must include the possibility of encountering archaeological evidence, how to identify possible archaeological sites, the archaeological work required by the conditions of this authority, and contractors' responsibilities with regard to discovering archaeological evidence.

Commented [KM11]: Clause included in response to comment from Whitiara. See response to comment 6.5.

During Works

7	Tikanga Archaeological work must be undertaken in conformity with any tikanga Māori protocols agreed between the Authority Holder and Whitiara.
8	Kōiwi Discovery If any kōiwi (human remains) are encountered, all works must cease within 20 metres of the discovery. HNZPT, New Zealand Police, and Whitiara must be advised immediately. Any steps following must be undertaken in accordance with Guidelines for Kōiwi Tangata/Human Remains (AGS8 2014) and no further work in the area may take place until future actions have been agreed by all parties.
9	Monitoring Any earthworks that may affect an archaeological site must be monitored by the section 45 approved person, who may appoint a person to carry out the monitoring on their behalf in accordance with accepted archaeological practice and the ACSMP.
10	Investigation Any archaeological evidence encountered during the exercise of this Archaeological Authority must be investigated, recorded and analysed in accordance with accepted archaeological practice and the ACSMP.
11	Annual Reporting Annually from the date of issue of this Authority, the Authority Holder must submit to Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga a written report containing a summary of the progress of the activity and any archaeological findings.
After Works	
12	Work Completion Notification The Authority Holder shall advise HNZPT and Whitiara of the completion of archaeological works within five working days of completion.
13	Completion of Archaeological Siteworks Within 20 working days of the completion of on-site archaeological work associated with this authority, the Authority Holder shall ensure that: (a) An interim report, to the satisfaction of HNZPT, following the Archaeological Report Guideline (AGS12 2023) is submitted to HNZPT for inclusion in the HNZPT Archaeological Reports Digital Library. (b) Site records are updated or submitted to the NZAA Site Recording Scheme.
14	Archaeological Records

	Within 18 months of the completion of the on-site archaeological work, the Authority Holder shall ensure that a final report, completed following the Archaeological Report Guideline (AGS12 2023), is emailed to HNZPT for inclusion in HNZPT's Archaeological Reports Digital Library, and to Whitiara. A copy must also be provided to the NZAA Central Filekeeper.
--	---

AUTHORITY DETAILS

Authority Number:

Determination Date:

Expiry Date: 20 years from grant

Authority Holder: NZ Transport Agency Waka Kotahi

Postal Address: BNZ Centre, Level 1/120 Hereford Street, Christchurch 8011

Archaeological Sites: ~~M35/1189 (historic homestead site), and p~~Potential subsurface archaeological sites

Commented [BH12]: This site is covered in the previous Archaeological Authorities (copy paste typo that needs updating as per track change).

Location: Lot 9009 DP 598404 Lot 27 DP 590590

Commented [BH13]: This is the property for Authority 3 - copy paste typo that needs updating as per track change to relate to Authority 4 property applied for.

S45 Approved Person: To be approved pursuant to section 45 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014

Landowner Consent: To be provided

DETERMINATION

The FTA Expert Consenting Panel grants an archaeological authority pursuant to section 81 of the Fast Track Approvals Act 2024 and section 48 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014 in respect of the archaeological sites described above, within the areas specified in the location above, to NZ Transport Agency for earthworks associated with construction of State Highway 1 North Canterbury – Woodend Bypass Project (known as Belfast to Pegasus) (archaeological works), subject to the following conditions:

CONDITIONS OF AUTHORITY

No.	Condition
Before Works	
1	Start Work Notification The Authority Holder shall advise Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga (HNZPT) and Whitiōra of the date when archaeological works will commence at least two working days before commencement.
2	Archaeological Management Plan

The Authority Holder shall prepare an Archaeological and Cultural Sites Management Plan (ACSMP) in consultation with Whitiara.

- (a) The purpose of the ACSMP is to require the Authority Holder to undertake construction in a manner that ensures the use of appropriate training, methods, protocols, and procedures in relation to the possible presence of archaeological sites or material that may be discovered during construction and the appropriate investigation and recording of any archaeological resources discovered during the construction of the Project.

(b) The ACSMP shall include:

- i. Provision for Whitiara cultural monitoring to take place ~~during archaeological investigations;~~
- ii. Procedures for reporting items, artifacts, and / or other archaeological finds to Whitiara and HNZPT; and
- iii. Procedures in the case of any koiwi finds, including advice to the NZ Police.
- iv. Procedures for any archaeological investigation or recording of archaeological information;
- v. The role, responsibility and level of authority of the s45 approved person and any other person appointed to undertake archaeological work on their behalf. Names and contact details of all other persons whom the s45 approved person appoints must be stated in the management plan;
- vi. Timeframes for archaeological work;
- vii. Protocols for the unexpected discovery of archaeological material;
- viii. The responsibilities of contractors with regard to notification of archaeological sites;
- ix. Requirements for stand down periods to enable archaeological work;
- x. Mechanisms for dispute resolution;
- xi. Emergency contact details for the s45 approved person, Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga, and Iwi.

The ACSMP must be submitted to HNZPT for approval at least 30 Working Days before starting Construction Works (or the stage of work to which the ACSMP applies), the ACSMP shall be submitted to HNZPT for certification that the ACSMP satisfies the requirements of 2(a) and (b). In the event HNZPT has not within 30 Working Days certified the ACSMP or advised that the ACSMP is not suitable to certify, the ACSMP will be deemed to have been certified, and the Consent Holder may commence Construction Works in accordance with the ACSMP. prior to the commencement of any earthworks. No earthworks shall commence until HNZPT has given its written approval of the ACSMP.

The approved ACSMP shall be implemented and complied with for the duration of the Authority.

The Authority Holder may update the ACSMP by submitting the amended ACSMP in writing to HNZPT for its written approval. Any updates to the ACSMP shall be prepared in

Commented [KM14]: Clause removed in response to comment from Whitiara. See response to comment 6.4

Commented [KM15]: NZTA acknowledges HPTNZ's position regarding deemed certification. For consistency, NZTA seeks certification timeframes and deemed certification across all approvals. NZTA and HPTNZ are continuing to work towards agreement on the ACSMP itself. If this can be approved by HPTNZ and Whitiara, condition 2 can be amended to remove the deemed certification process.

	consultation with Whitiara. At least 30 Working Days before starting Construction Works (or the stage of work to which the ACSMP applies), the ACSMP shall be submitted to HNZPT for certification that the ACSMP satisfies the requirements of AA.5(c) and (d). In the event HNZPT has not within 30 Working Days certified the ACSMP or advised that the ACSMP is not suitable to certify, the ACSMP will be deemed to have been certified, and the Consent Holder may commence Construction Works in accordance with the ACSMP. The Authority Holder may update the ACSMP by submitting the amended ACSMP in writing to HNZPT for its written approval.
3	Archaeological Research and Mitigation Strategy The Authority Holder shall prepare an Archaeological Research and Mitigation Strategy (Strategy). The Strategy shall include: (a) the research objectives that archaeological investigations should address and the methodologies to be followed to achieve those objectives. The research objectives shall be informed by regional and national research themes. (b) Provision for review and feedback by Whitiara prior to submission to HNZPT, including for any potential amendments after approval At least 20 Working Days before starting Project Works, the Strategy shall be submitted to HNZPT for written approval. The approved Strategy shall be implemented and complied with for the duration of the Authority. The Authority Holder may update the Strategy by submitting the amended Strategy in writing to HNZPT for written approval.
4	Landowner Consent The Authority Holder must provide HNZPT with the written consent of all landowners of the land subject to this Authority prior to any archaeological works commencing.
5	Approved Person This Authority may not be exercised until a person to undertake the work required has been approved in writing by HNZPT under section 45 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014.
6	Site Briefing The Authority Holder must ensure that all contractors working on the project are briefed on site by the section 45 approved person (who may appoint a person to carry out the briefing on their behalf) prior to any archaeological works commencing. The briefing must include the possibility of encountering archaeological evidence, how to identify possible archaeological sites, the archaeological work required by the conditions of this authority, and contractors' responsibilities with regard to discovering archaeological evidence.

Commented [KM16]: Clause included in response to comment from Whitiara. See response to comment 6.5.

During Works

7	Tikanga Archaeological work must be undertaken in conformity with any tikanga Māori protocols agreed between the Authority Holder and Whitiara.
8	Kōiwi Discovery If any kōiwi (human remains) are encountered, all works must cease within 20 metres of the discovery. HNZPT, New Zealand Police, and Whitiara must be advised immediately. Any steps following must be undertaken in accordance with Guidelines for Kōiwi Tangata/Human Remains (AGS8 2014) and no further work in the area may take place until future actions have been agreed by all parties.
9	Monitoring Any earthworks that may affect an archaeological site must be monitored by the section 45 approved person, who may appoint a person to carry out the monitoring on their behalf in accordance with accepted archaeological practice and the ACSMP.
10	Investigation Any archaeological evidence encountered during the exercise of this Archaeological Authority must be investigated, recorded and analysed in accordance with accepted archaeological practice and the ACSMP.
11	Annual Reporting Annually from the date of issue of this Authority, the Authority Holder must submit to Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga a written report containing a summary of the progress of the activity and any archaeological findings.
After Works	
12	Work Completion Notification The Authority Holder shall advise HNZPT and Whitiara of the completion of archaeological works within five working days of completion.
13	Completion of Archaeological Siteworks Within 20 working days of the completion of on-site archaeological work associated with this authority, the Authority Holder shall ensure that: (a) An interim report, to the satisfaction of HNZPT, following the Archaeological Report Guideline (AGS12 2023) is submitted to HNZPT for inclusion in the HNZPT Archaeological Reports Digital Library. (b) Site records are updated or submitted to the NZAA Site Recording Scheme.
14	Archaeological Records

	Within 18 months of the completion of the on-site archaeological work, the Authority Holder shall ensure that a final report, completed following the Archaeological Report Guideline (AGS12 2023), is emailed to HNZPT for inclusion in HNZPT's Archaeological Reports Digital Library, and to Whitiara. A copy must also be provided to the NZAA Central Filekeeper.
--	---

AUTHORITY DETAILS

Determination Date: **Expiry Date:** 20 years from grant

Postal Address: BNZ Centre, Level 1/120 Hereford Street, Christchurch 8011

Archaeological Sites: Potential subsurface archaeological sites

Location: Lot 1 DP 55844 201; Lot 1 DP 501681; Lot 2 DP 501681; Lot 2 DP 28689; Lot 3 DP 28689; Lot 1 DP 56636; Part Lot 1 DP 6666

S45 Approved Person: To be approved pursuant to section 45 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014

Landowner Consent: To be provided

The FTA Expert Consenting Panel grants an archaeological authority pursuant to section 81 of the Fast Track Approvals Act 2024 and section 48 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014 in respect of the archaeological sites described above, within the areas specified in the location above, to NZ Transport Agency for earthworks associated with construction of State Highway 1 North Canterbury – Woodend Bypass Project (known as Belfast to Pegasus) (archaeological works), subject to the following conditions:

CONDITIONS OF AUTHORITY

No.	Condition
Before Works	
1	Start Work Notification The Authority Holder shall advise Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga (HNZPT) and Whitiōra of the date when archaeological works will commence at least two working days before commencement.
2	Archaeological Management Plan The Authority Holder shall prepare an Archaeological and Cultural Sites Management Plan (ACSMP) in consultation with Whitiōra.

(a) The purpose of the ACSMP is to require the Authority Holder to undertake construction in a manner that ensures the use of appropriate training, methods, protocols, and procedures in relation to the possible presence of archaeological sites or material that may be discovered during construction and the appropriate investigation and recording of any archaeological resources discovered during the construction of the Project.

(b) The ACSMP shall include:

- i. Provision for Whitiara cultural monitoring to take place ~~during archaeological investigations;~~
- ii. Procedures for reporting items, artifacts, and / or other archaeological finds to Whitiara and HNZPT; and
- iii. Procedures in the case of any koiwi finds, including advice to the NZ Police.
- iv. Procedures for any archaeological investigation or recording of archaeological information;
- v. The role, responsibility and level of authority of the s45 approved person and any other person appointed to undertake archaeological work on their behalf. Names and contact details of all other persons whom the s45 approved person appoints must be stated in the management plan;
- vi. Timeframes for archaeological work;
- vii. Protocols for the unexpected discovery of archaeological material;
- viii. The responsibilities of contractors with regard to notification of archaeological sites;
- ix. Requirements for stand down periods to enable archaeological work;
- x. Mechanisms for dispute resolution;
- xi. Emergency contact details for the s45 approved person, Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga, and Iwi.

The ACSMP must be submitted to HNZPT for approval at least 30 Working Days before starting Construction Works (or the stage of work to which the ACSMP applies), the ACSMP shall be submitted to HNZPT for certification that the ACSMP satisfies the requirements of 2(a) and (b). In the event NZHPT has not within 30 Working Days certified the ACSMP or advised that the ACSMP is not suitable to certify, the ACSMP will be deemed to have been certified, and the Consent Holder may commence Construction Works in accordance with the ACSMP. prior to the commencement of any earthworks. No earthworks shall commence until HNZPT has given its written approval of the ACSMP.

The approved ACSMP shall be implemented and complied with for the duration of the Authority.

The Authority Holder may update the ACSMP by submitting the amended ACSMP in writing to HNZPT for its written approval. Any updates to the ACSMP shall be prepared in consultation with Whitiara. At least 30 Working Days before starting Construction Works (or the stage of work to which the ACSMP applies), the ACSMP shall be submitted to HNZPT for certification that the ACSMP satisfies the requirements of AA.5(c) and (d). In the event

Commented [KM17]: Clause removed in response to comment from Whitiara. See response to comment 6.4

Commented [KM18]: NZTA acknowledges HPTNZ's position regarding deemed certification. For consistency, NZTA seeks certification timeframes and deemed certification across all approvals. NZTA and HPTNZ are continuing to work towards agreement on the ACSMP itself. If this can be approved by HPTNZ and Whitiara, condition 2 can be amended to remove the deemed certification process.

Commented [KM19]: Clause included in response to comment from Whitiara. See response to comment 6.5.

	NZHPT has not within 30 Working Days certified the ACSMP or advised that the ACSMP is not suitable to certify, the ACSMP will be deemed to have been certified, and the Consent Holder may commence Construction Works in accordance with the ACSMP.
3	Archaeological Research and Mitigation Strategy The Authority Holder shall prepare an Archaeological Research and Mitigation Strategy (Strategy). The Strategy shall include: (a) the research objectives that archaeological investigations should address and the methodologies to be followed to achieve those objectives. The research objectives shall be informed by regional and national research themes. (b) Provision for review and feedback by Whitiara prior to submission to HNZPT, including for any potential amendments after approval At least 20 Working Days before starting Project Works, the Strategy shall be submitted to HNZPT for written approval. The approved Strategy shall be implemented and complied with for the duration of the Authority. The Authority Holder may update the Strategy by submitting the amended Strategy in writing to HNZPT for written approval.
4	Landowner Consent The Authority Holder must provide HNZPT with the written consent of all landowners of the land subject to this Authority prior to any archaeological works commencing.
5	Approved Person This Authority may not be exercised until a person to undertake the work required has been approved in writing by HNZPT under section 45 of the Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga Act 2014.
6	Site Briefing The Authority Holder must ensure that all contractors working on the project are briefed on site by the section 45 approved person (who may appoint a person to carry out the briefing on their behalf) prior to any archaeological works commencing. The briefing must include the possibility of encountering archaeological evidence, how to identify possible archaeological sites, the archaeological work required by the conditions of this authority, and contractors' responsibilities with regard to discovering archaeological evidence.
During Works	
7	Tikanga Archaeological work must be undertaken in conformity with any tikanga Māori protocols agreed between the Authority Holder and Whitiara.

8	Kōiwi Discovery If any kōiwi (human remains) are encountered, all works must cease within 20 metres of the discovery. HNZPT, New Zealand Police, and Whitiōra must be advised immediately. Any steps following must be undertaken in accordance with Guidelines for Kōiwi Tangata/Human Remains (AGS8 2014) and no further work in the area may take place until future actions have been agreed by all parties.
9	Monitoring Any earthworks that may affect an archaeological site must be monitored by the section 45 approved person, who may appoint a person to carry out the monitoring on their behalf in accordance with accepted archaeological practice and the ACSMP.
10	Investigation Any archaeological evidence encountered during the exercise of this Archaeological Authority must be investigated, recorded and analysed in accordance with accepted archaeological practice and the ACSMP.
11	Annual Reporting Annually from the date of issue of this Authority, the Authority Holder must submit to Heritage New Zealand Pouhere Taonga a written report containing a summary of the progress of the activity and any archaeological findings.
After Works	
12	Work Completion Notification The Authority Holder shall advise HNZPT and Whitiōra of the completion of archaeological works within five working days of completion.
13	Completion of Archaeological Siteworks Within 20 working days of the completion of on-site archaeological work associated with this authority, the Authority Holder shall ensure that: (a) An interim report, to the satisfaction of HNZPT, following the Archaeological Report Guideline (AGS12 2023) is submitted to HNZPT for inclusion in the HNZPT Archaeological Reports Digital Library. (b) Site records are updated or submitted to the NZAA Site Recording Scheme.
14	Archaeological Records Within 18 months of the completion of the on-site archaeological work, the Authority Holder shall ensure that a final report, completed following the Archaeological Report Guideline (AGS12 2023), is emailed to HNZPT for inclusion in HNZPT's Archaeological

	Reports Digital Library, and to Whitiara. A copy must also be provided to the NZAA Central Filekeeper.
--	--